## TONBRIDGE AND MALLING BOROUGH COUNCIL

## PLANNING AND TRANSPORTATION ADVISORY BOARD

## Tuesday, 11th March, 2014

#### Present:

Cllr M Parry-Waller (Vice-Chairman in the Chair), Cllr J Atkins, Cllr Mrs J M Bellamy, Cllr Ms V M C Branson, Cllr D J Cure, Cllr M O Davis, Cllr Mrs F A Kemp, Cllr R D Lancaster, Cllr D W Smith, Cllr A K Sullivan and Cllr M Taylor

Councillors Mrs J A Anderson, J A L Balcombe, O C Baldock, M A C Balfour, B J Luker, Miss A Moloney, Mrs S Murray and M R Rhodes were also present pursuant to Council Procedure Rule No 15.21.

An apology for absence was received from Councillor D A S Davis (Chairman).

## PE 14/6 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

Councillor Cure declared an Other Significant Interest on the Kent Minerals and Waste Local Plan Response to Consultation on the grounds that his wife was employed by a waste contractor and withdrew from the meeting during consideration of this item.

### PE 14/7 MINUTES

**RESOLVED:** That the notes of the meeting of the Planning and Transportation Advisory held on 19 November 2013 be approved as a correct record and signed by the Chairman.

**RESOLVED**: That the notes of the extraordinary meeting of the Planning and Transportation Advisory Board held on 20 January 2014 be approved as a correct record and signed by the Chairman.

### MATTERS FOR RECOMMENDATION TO THE CABINET

# PE 14/8 KENT MINERALS AND WASTE LOCAL PLAN RESPONSE TO CONSULTATION

The report of the Director of Planning, Housing and Environmental Health recommended a response to the Kent County Council presubmission version of the Kent Minerals and Waste Local Plan which was out for consultation.

After careful consideration Members supported the proposed responses set out and recognised that further discussion with Kent County Council on the issues raised would be constructive.

**RECOMMENDED:** That the proposed responses in the report be used as the basis for ongoing discussion with Kent County Council and inform the Borough Council's formal response to the consultation on the Kent Minerals and Waste Local Plan (Pre-Submission, January 2014).

#### \*Referred to Cabinet

#### PE 14/9 LOCAL PLAN UPDATE

#### Decision Notice D140030MEM

The report provided an update on progress towards the new Local Plan, including the preparation of evidence, community engagement arrangements and proposed revisions to the timetable. Consideration was given to outcomes from the final version of the Strategic Housing Market Assessment, arrangements for the forthcoming 'Call for Sites' exercise and revisions to the Local Plan timetable.

The figure for Maidstone's adopted housing target at paragraph 1.2.8 of the report was corrected at the meeting to read "17,100".

It was reported that the 'objectively assessed need' for Tonbridge and Malling for the period 2011 to 2031 was for 13,000 new homes, or 650 per annum. This represented a growth in the existing housing stock of 1.4% per year.

Members expressed concern regarding risks associated with flooding and urged that flood risk was investigated, particularly the impact on neighbouring properties as a result of flood mitigation measures. The Director of Planning, Housing and Environmental Health advised that the housing figures provided in the report were based on a demographic analysis. Constraints, including areas of outstanding natural beauty and flood plains, needed to be taken into account in addressing how to meet those objectively assessed housing needs.

#### **RECOMMENDED**: That

- (1) the progress towards preparing the Local Plan, including the proposed Call for Sites exercise be noted;
- (2) the final version of the Tonbridge and Malling Strategic Housing Market Assessment, including the Objectively Assessed Housing Need for the Borough to 2013, be acknowledged and accepted as forming part of the Local Plan evidence base; and
- (3) the revised Local Plan timetable, set out in Annex 1 to the report, be used as a basis of a revised Local Development Scheme.

# PE 14/10 PETITION REGARDING HAYDENS MEWS AND THE WHITE HOUSE CONSERVATION STATUS

The report advised that the Borough Council had received a petition from residents of Haydens Mews (36 signatories) requesting that the Tonbridge Conservation Area boundary be revised to include this area.

It was reported that the previous removal of Haydens Mews from the Tonbridge Conservation Area had been subject to a public consultation exercise, along with all other alterations to the boundary that were proposed at the time. Objections to the proposed exclusion had been carefully considered but the Borough Council had remained of the view that the area should not form part of the Conservation Area and adopted the revised boundary accordingly. (Minute Number C 09/063 refers).

However, reference was made to changes in permitted development rights during the intervening period and it was considered that a review of the boundary could be justified on these grounds.

**RECOMMENDED:** The Tonbridge Conservation Area boundary in the vicinity of Haydens Mews be reviewed in the light of changes in permitted development rights since the conservation area status was removed.

#### \*Referred to Cabinet

## PE 14/11 TOWN LOCK CAPITAL PROJECT

Decision Notice D140031MEM

The report provided an update on progress and set out a programme for the implementation of the scheme.

Members noted that a start date on site was now anticipated for July 2014, which allowed the majority of the work to be completed during the summer months when working conditions were most favourable. Completion of the project would be around October/November dependent upon the contractor's approved construction programme.

In addition, the Advisory Board had every confidence that the objectives of officers were the same as local Members in getting the Town Lock area reinvigorated.

**RECOMMENDED**: That the progress made towards implementing the Town Lock capital project be noted and the programme as set out in the report be approved.

#### PE 14/12 KCC CYCLING STRATEGY

Decision Notice D140032MEM

At the request of the Joint Transportation Board the Director of Planning, Housing and Environmental Health presented the KCC Cycling Strategy for consideration.

It was reported that the Strategy should form part of the context for considering planning applications and in the production of the forthcoming Local Plan.

**RECOMMENDED**: That the Kent and Tonbridge and Malling Cycling Strategy 2014-2019 be adopted as a material consideration in decisions on planning applications and in the production of the Local Plan.

## MATTERS SUBMITTED FOR INFORMATION

### PE 14/13 TRANSPORT ISSUES AND PROJECTS

The report provided an update on a range of current transportation issues affecting the Borough.

Reference was made to the Lower Thames Crossing and Members were advised that Option B, connecting the A2 Swanscombe Peninsula with the A1089, had been discarded and that further work would be done to choose between Options A and C.

In addition, Members were reminded of the unsuccessful bid to the Department for Transport's Pinch Point Funding for widening the eastern overbridge at Junction 4 of the M20. However, Kent County Council was submitting the scheme to the Local Enterprise Partnership for Local Growth Funding and, given the strong business case, hoped that the necessary contribution could be secured.

#### PE 14/14 LETTER TO PLANNING MINISTER NICK BOLES

Members were informed of a letter prepared by the Cabinet Member for Planning and Transportation to the Planning Minister, Nick Boles MP, on 28 January 2014 raising a number of issues relating to the Government's ongoing planning reforms.

A copy of the letter, drawing attention to some of the new requirements on Local Planning Authorities and the challenges they presented when preparing Local Plans, was attached at Annex 1 to the report. The recent response from the Planning Minister was attached at Annex 2 to the report.

## **MATTERS FOR CONSIDERATION IN PRIVATE**

## PE 14/15 EXCLUSION OF PRESS AND PUBLIC

There were no items considered in private.

The meeting ended at 9.20 pm